
  

District 36 Spring Meeting  
of the District Council (HYBRID)  

Friday, May 16, 2025 6:30 PM @ Rockville Hilton  

Presiding:  District Director Ramu Garapati, PM3  

  

Agenda  

  

Agenda Item  Person Responsible  

1. Call to Order  Sonya Ponds, DTM  

2. Welcome, Introduction,  

Recognition of Dignitaries, District  

Leaders  

District Director, Ramu Garapati, PM3  

3. District Mission /District Purpose  Co-Administration Manager, Janice Strachan, DTM  

4. Credentials Report  Co-Chairs John Kinsman, DTM and John Ojeifo, DTM  

5. Approval of Appointed District  

Officers  

District Director, Ramu Garapati, PM3  

6. Meeting Rules Adoption  District Parliamentarian, Scott Meyer, DTM  

7. Agenda Adoption  District Director, Ramu Garapati, PM3  

8. Fall Meeting Minutes Approval  District Director, Ramu Garapati, PM3  

9. Unfinished Business  District Director, Ramu Garapati, PM3  

10. New Business  District Alignment Report by Alignment Committee Chair – John 
Ojeifo, DTM  
  

District Leadership Committee Report by Past District Director, 
Danielle Derrick, DTM  
  

Election of 2025-2026 Officers – District Director, Ramu  

Garapati, PM3  

  

  

  

  



11. Finance Reports  Audit Committee Report by Audit Committee Chairman - Howard 

Glassman, DTM  

  

District Finance Report by Finance Manager -  

Robert Behr, DTM  

12. 2024-2025 District Officers’  

Reports  

(2 minutes each)   

 Division A Director, Sandhya Murthy  

 Division B Director, Maria-Pia Younger, LD5   

 Division C Director, Shivali Haribhakti, DTM  

 Division D Director, Justine Desmarais, SR3  

 Division E Director, Mike Onzay, DTM   

 Division F Director, Patrick Cuff , EC3  

 Division G Director, Jill Vanderweit, DTM  

  

(5 minutes)  
Public Relations Manager: Hareldau Argyle-King, DTM  

Club Growth Director: Augusta Inniss, DTM  

Program Quality Director: Arvind Venugopal, DTM  

District Director: Ramu Garapati, PM3  

13. Announcements  District Director, Ramu Garapati, PM3  

14. Meeting Adjournment  District Director, Ramu Garapati, PM3  

   

    

  



 

Zoom Protocol  

1. When entering the Zoom meeting, all participants must be identified with your Role plus your First and 

Last Name so it shows on screen. If your name is not listed, you will be asked to identify yourself. If you 

do not add your name, you will be removed from the meeting. Examples:  

P FirstName LastName for Club President  

V FirstName LastName for Vice President Education  

T1 FirstName LastName for district timer #1  

2. All participants will be muted when joining.  

  

3. All participants will keep camera/video off unless speaking.  

  

4. When acknowledged by the Chair, the Zoom host will un-mute your audio to allow you to speak.  

  

5. The "Raise Hand" feature is available by clicking on the hand icon in the participant window or by 

clicking on the “Raise Hand” icon in the Reactions bar at the bottom/top of the screen, depending on 

the version of Zoom that you have. If you are participating by phone, please press "star 9" to raise your 

hand.  

Zoom Rules  

By attending this hybrid District Business Council meeting, you agree to the privacy policy of  

Toastmasters International as well as the unassociated remote hosting service. Some of your personal 

information, such as name, image, and any shared messages may be shared with other meeting participants.   

Your remote attendance hereby discharges Toastmasters International and District 36 from all claims, 

demands, rights, promises, damages and liabilities arising out of or in connection with the use or distribution 

of any video recordings, including but not limited to any claims for invasion of privacy, appropriation of 

likeness or defamation.  

Using AI Tools  

District 36 does not encourage or condone using AI tools/bots/extensions or services like ChatGPT to 

screenscrape or capture meeting notes for online events. To protect the privacy of the attendees who would 

need to provide permission, please contact trio@district36.org before the use of such tools at any District36 

events.   

Currently only the Yoodli AI tool is legally binding to be used under Toastmasters International Bylaws.  

  

  



 

District Mission Statement  

We build new clubs and support all clubs in achieving excellence.  

The mission of District 36 Toastmasters is to empower emerging leaders by providing a supportive and 

inclusive environment for individuals to develop their communication and leadership skills.  Through our 

commitment to building stronger communities, we aim to inspire personal growth, foster professional 

development, and create positive change in society.  

  

District 36 Theme  

Mastering Executive Presence  

Building Crucial Influence through the collective power and strength of District 36 community  

The symbolism of the Tree of Life reflects who we are as D36 Toastmasters. We grow by learning and serving 

members one quality meeting at a time.  

  

District Vision Statement  

District 36 will be a vibrant community of enthusiastic, energetic Toastmasters who are dedicated to helping 

themselves and others achieve their highest communication and leadership potential.  

  

  

  

  

  



   

Credentials Committee Report 

DCM Credentials Committee Email: credentials@district36.org  

  

Clubs Eligible X 2 = ______________  

Quorum (1/3 of Clubs Eligible X 2) = ______________  

Presidents and Vice Presidents Education Represented = ______________  

District Executive Committee Members Represented = ______________  

Total Ballots Available = ______________  

Majority (50% of the Total Ballots Available + 1) = ______________  

2/3 Majority = ______________  

  

Note: Proxies are not allowed during this meeting.  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Approval of Appointed District Officers  

  

There were no newly appointed District Officers after the Fall Business Meeting.  

    

  



 

District 36 Council Meeting Standing Rules In-Person Meetings   

  

From TI District Administrative Bylaws, Articles IX - XI and XIII, as amended August 19, 2022. (Not 
subject to approval by the District Council)   

  

1. Registration: Council members were asked to preregister to establish a quorum.  

2. Approval of Minutes: The District Director shall designate to the Steering Committee the 

responsibility for approving minutes of this District Council meeting. The Steering Committee includes the 

following: the District Director, the Program Quality Director, the Club Growth Director, the Public 

Relations Manager, the Finance Manager, the Administration Manager, the Division Directors, and the 

Immediate Past District Director. If minutes are not presented to the Steering Committee for approval, they 
will be read at the next District Council meeting.  

3. Appointment of Timer: The District Director shall appoint an official timer(s) for this District. The 

designated timer will alert the speaker when speaking time expires.  

4. Motions:  

A. The maker of each motion and each speaker in debate shall raise his or her hand, provide name and 

District role or club name/club number represented (in the Council meeting), and wait to be acknowledged by the 
Chair.   

B. The District Director will request that main motions and amendments be in writing in advance 

(when possible), signed by the maker of the motion using the following format (/s/ First and Last name), and 

submitted electronically to presented to the Chair, with a copy to the Administration Manager.  

C. All Council members may participate in discussions, in accordance with these rules and the District’s 

parliamentary authority.  

  

5. Time Limit on Debate:  

A. No member of the District Council shall speak in debate more than once on the same  question, or 

longer than two minutes, on the same question, except by permission of the District Council granted by a twothirds 

vote (or unanimous consent) without debate.  

B. Other than Elections, debate shall be limited on all matters coming before the District Council to a 

maximum of 15 minutes, except by permission of the District Council granted by a two-thirds vote (or unanimous 

consent) without debate.  

6. Time limit on Speeches:  

Candidate Speeches) shall be limited to a maximum of two (2) minutes for each candidate for each office.  

7. District Administrative Bylaws: District Council shall refer to Toastmasters.org for current governing 

documents.   

  



  

Virtual Meetings  

From TI District Administrative Bylaws, Articles IX - XI and XIII, as amended August 19, 2022. (Not 

subject to approval by the District Council)   

  

Voting District Council Composition: The District Council shall consist of the District Executive Committee and the 

President and Vice President Education from each member club in the District. The District Executive Committee is 

composed of the District Director, Program Quality Director, Club Growth Director, Public Relations Manager, 

Administration Manager, Finance Manager, Division Directors, Area Directors, and the Immediate Past District 

Director. These shall be the only voting members of the District Council.   

  

Quorum: One-third of the Presidents and Vice Presidents Education from member clubs in the District shall 

constitute a quorum for District Council Meetings. In the event that any business is transacted at any District 

Council meeting at which a quorum is not present, the action shall be deemed as valid as if a quorum were present 

if it thereafter is expressly approved in writing, personally, by mail, fax, e-mail, electronic transmission or other 

reasonable means, by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Member Clubs in the District on the basis of two (2) 

votes per club.  

  

Proxies: Proxies are not permitted for a virtual business meeting.  

  

Voting: Each member of the District Council participating in a Council Meeting is entitled to one vote. The 

President and Vice President Education from a member club in good standing are entitled to two votes and any 
such individual member who is also entitled to a vote as a member of the District Executive Committee is entitled 

to an additional vote, for a total of three votes. All other members of the District Council shall be limited to a 

maximum of two votes. Proxies are not permitted for virtual meetings.  

  

Rules of Order: Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised shall be the final authority on parliamentary procedure 

insofar as they do not conflict with any provision in the District Administrative Bylaws, the Articles of Incorporation 

or Bylaws of Toastmasters International, Policies and Procedures, set by the Toastmasters  

International Board of Directors.    

  



District 36 Council Meeting Proposed Ground Rules   

Credentials: Council members were asked to preregister to establish a quorum. Registrations to 

determine a quorum will be tallied 24 hours prior to the meeting.    

Parliamentary Aids: To expedite the meeting, the Chairperson will use unanimous consent as much as 

possible, especially in accepting the submission of committee reports. Any Council Member may object 

to unanimous consent by stating “objection” when the presiding officer says, “if there are no objections” 

or “hearing no objections.” With any objection, a motion will have to be made and seconded, discussed 

and voted. While all points of view are entitled to be heard, that does not mean every member needs to 

speak. Because of limited time for debate and discussion, members are asked to primarily make 

statements that offer new information and not repeat what has already been stated. Rights of the 

minority opinion are to be protected and respected even though majority rules. Courtesy should be 

extended to all participants and that includes not asking redundant questions that have previously been 

answered either in the delegates’ package or by other delegates.    

Submittal of Motions: Resolutions, motions, or amendments to motions shall be submitted in writing 

to the Chair.    

New Business: Motions for “New Business” must be submitted no later than seven days prior to the 

council meeting.   

Announcements: The Chairperson should be informed of any intentions to make announcements 

before the start of the District Council Meeting.   

Addressing the Council: Recognition by the Chairperson is required before a person addresses the 
District Council. Without recognition, comments will not be part of the official record.  To address the 

District Council, an individual must address the Chairperson and wait for acknowledgment by the 

Chairperson.   

1. For in-person meetings, to ask a question, make a motion, speak in debate, or second a motion, 

please raise your hand, give your name and District role or club name/club number represented 
(in the Council meeting), and wait to be acknowledged by the Chair. For virtual meetings, to ask 

a question, make a motion, speak in debate, or second a motion, please “Raise Hand” and write 

in the Chat box, giving your name and District role or club name/club number represented (in 

the Council meeting), and wait to be acknowledged by the Chair. For virtual meetings, such 

documents may be posted in the chat.  

2. Once acknowledged, the individual should state their name, club name, club number, or District 

Council role, and then succinctly state the business.   

3. The District Director will request that main motions and amendments be in writing in advance 

(when possible), signed by the maker of the motion using the following format (/s/ First and 

Last name), and submitted electronically to be presented to the Chair, with a copy to the 

Administration Manager.   

4. All Council members may participate in discussions, in accordance with these rules and the 

District’s parliamentary authority.    

  

Business Time Limits and Guidelines for Participation: There will be limited debate on items of business.    

1. Each individual shall have a maximum of two (2) minutes to address the question. No member 

of the District Council shall speak in debate more than once on the same question except by 

permission of the District Council granted by a two-thirds vote (or unanimous consent) 

without debate.    



2. Council Members holding ballots have the right to debate before members without ballots.    

3. The maximum time for discussing or debating any particular motion, including its 
amendments, shall be fifteen (15) minutes. Unless two-thirds majority of Council Members 

vote in favor of any motion to change the time limits for debate, the Council will immediately 

vote on the pending question if the 15-minute limit is reached.    

4. Any Toastmaster in good standing may voice their opinion on any question of business but 

may not make any motion nor vote on any business unless they are a Council Member.  

5. During the Annual Business Meeting, each district officer candidate, including any floor 

candidate, is entitled to a two (2) minute speech after nominations are closed and prior to 

election of the respective officer position. At the discretion of the Chairperson, candidate 

speeches may be suspended for uncontested positions (cases in which only one candidate has 

been nominated). Speeches by candidates are delivered in alphabetical order of the 

candidate’s last name, by office, beginning with the highest contested office. Each speech shall 

be delivered by the candidate if present. If the candidate is absent and has consented to the 

nomination and signed the Officer Agreement and Release  

Statement, the candidate’s representative may give the speech. All floor candidates must 

identify their intent to run from the floor by seven (7) days prior to the business meeting and 

must have been interviewed by the District Leadership Committee (DLC): non-DLCinterviewed 

floor candidates will not be accepted during the meeting. No other speeches, demonstrations, 

or other activities related to the election of officers are allowed during the Council Meeting.    

Appointment of Timer: The District Director shall appoint an official timer(s) for this District Council 

Meeting. The designated timer(s) will alert the speaker when speaking time expires.    

District Administrative Bylaws: District Council shall refer to Toastmasters.org for current governing 

documents.  

    

  



 

Fall Meeting Minutes Approval  

  

Due to technical problems at the Fall District Council Meeting, the Administrative Officer could not capture the 

meeting minutes. Therefore, no minutes are available for the Fall District Council Meeting that was held 

September 22, 2024.  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Unfinished Business  

  

There was no unfinished business from the Fall District Council Meeting.  

    

  



 

District 36 2025-2026 Club Alignment Committee (CAC) Proposal Report   

The District Alignment Committee  

The District Alignment Committee (CAC) is a group of District 36 members led by the club alignment chair. The 

club alignment chair ensures the committee prepares an alignment proposal and submits it to the District 

Executive Committee for review prior to the District Council meeting and approval. The CAC charge is to review 

and realign, if necessary, clubs in the Areas and Divisions within the boundaries of District 36 for the 20252026 

Toastmasters year.  

The dedicated District 36 CAC Team was comprised of:  
CAC Chair  John Ojeifo, DTM  

Division A Director  Sandhya Murthy, CC  

Division B Director  Maria-Pia Younger, LD5  

Division C Director Representative  Tisina Samaroo, DTM (Area C-34 Director)  

Division D Director  Justine Desmarais, DTM  

Division E Director  Mike Onzay, DTM  

Division F Director  Patrick Cuff, PM5, IP5, PI5  

Division G Director  Jill Vanderweit, DTM  

 •  With support and encouragement from D36 Trio  

Responsibility of the District Alignment Committee  

The responsibility of the District 36 Club Alignment Committee (CAC) was to review and amend, if necessary, the  

alignment of clubs in Areas and Divisions within the boundaries of the district for the 2025-2026 Toastmasters 

year.  

CAC Proposed Realignment of District 36 clubs for the 2025-2026 Toastmaster Year  

The Alignment Committee undertook a comprehensive review of TI new rules, current club placements, chartered 

and suspended clubs, and geographic and meeting format considerations. We prioritized clarity, continuity, and 

community—ensuring each club is part of a structure that enables success and sustainable growth.  

We are pleased to report that we have proposed several key updates:  

1. TI’s New Rules Considerations: We’ve implemented TI’s new rules that require a minimum of four (4) Areas 

per division, and a minimum of four (4) and a maximum of six (6) clubs per Area. The minimum four clubs 

are required to be in good standing. Where appropriate, the clubs are grouped based on the ability of an 

Area Director to provide service, club size, strength, and growth potential, as well as other factors, rather 

than just physical location.  

2. Division Closures: The Committee proposes that the district reduces the number of divisions from seven 

(7) to six (6). Therefore, Division F that has less than four Areas, be closed and the clubs moved to other 

divisions to comply with the new TI rule.  

3. Area Closures: To comply with the World Headquarters’ requirements for four (4) clubs in good standing 

per Area, the committee also proposes the closure of six (6) Areas with less than four clubs and their clubs 

moved to other Areas. This will result in a reduction of the current number of Areas from 33 to 27.  

4. Club Transfers: Several clubs have been moved between Areas within and between divisions to balance 

workloads and improve geographical or functional alignment. Every move was made with consultation and 

input from current District and club leaders and members.  



5. New Clubs: We have added three (3) newly chartered clubs into the alignment. These clubs are assigned 

to Areas where they can receive proper support from experienced Area Directors and benefit from synergy 

with nearby or thematically similar clubs.  

6. Club Closures: Sadly, we acknowledged the loss of seven (7) clubs this year and more have announced 

their discontinuation. While this is never easy, their removal from the alignment ensures clarity and focus 

for Area Directors moving forward. We honor their contributions and hope to welcome their members back 

soon.  

7. Virtual and Hybrid Considerations: We’ve also addressed how virtual and hybrid clubs are integrated.  

Where appropriate, these clubs are grouped based on shared meeting formats, rather than just physical location.  

This proposed alignment has been reviewed by District leadership and aligns with Toastmasters International guidelines. 

We believe it provides the strongest possible foundation for leadership excellence, member engagement, and club success 

in the year ahead.  

With your approval, we will finalize the alignment and submit it to Toastmasters International prior to the required 

July 15, 2025, deadline.  

Appreciation  

The Committee extends its heartfelt gratitude to the District trio, Area Directors, all club officers, and District 36 

members for their tremendous help, support, and encouragement. Their timely submission of requested information, 

comments, and suggestions significantly contributed to the timely completion of the District 36 20252026 Club 

Alignment Proposal.  

The CAC Chair thanks all the Division Directors or their representatives on the Committee for their dedication, 

service, and exemplary leadership.  

Respectfully submitted,  

  

John Ojeifo, DTM  

Chair, Club Alignment Committee, District 36, 2024-2025 April 28, 

2025  

  



  

CAC2025 Proposed District 36 Club Alignment for 2025-2026  

  

 
  



  

    



  

    



  

    



  
  



 

District Leadership Committee Report 

Date: Thursday, April 3, 2025 at 5:36 PM  

Subject: District 36 Nominees  

  

Good evening Ramu,  

  

The DLC is pleased to announce the following nominees to run for office for the following roles:  

  

District Director  

Arvind Venugopal  

  

Program Quality Director  

Augusta Inniss  

  

Club Growth Director  

Jill Vanderweit  

  

Protocol 9.0 requires two Club Growth Director candidates to be nominated. If one candidate is nominated, 

the requirements of Protocol 9.0 have not been met, and the role will be considered incomplete on the DLC 

report. The single nomination from the DLC is valid. Any qualified candidate may run from the floor without 

being evaluated by the DLC. Each candidate must submit their intent to run from the floor to the District 

Director no later than seven (7) days prior to the election.  

  

Division Director  

Irina Gabidullin  

Sancho Jacinto  

Sandhya Murthy  

  

I will notify the nominees that they have all been nominated tonight. I will refer them to the policy on 

campaigning, campaigning violations, and endorsements. Could you confirm that they are still members in 

good standing as I am unable to do so?  

  

Your announcement of the nominees must be made six weeks prior to the election date. In your 

communication to the District, you may mention the Floor candidate process, which is below. Four weeks prior 

to the election, the pictures and bios can be emailed to the District. I can send you their pictures and bios or 

work directly with your PR Manager or Web master.  

  

  
  

  

https://www.toastmasters.org/leadership-central/governing-documents#Protocol90DistrictCampaignsandElections581
https://www.toastmasters.org/leadership-central/governing-documents#Protocol90DistrictCampaignsandElections581


Floor Candidates:  

If the DLC report is incomplete or invalid, it is essential to understand how the floor candidate process works. 

Floor candidates must declare their intent to run no later than seven (7) days before the Annual Meeting of 

the District Council.  

  

There are two categories of floor candidates:  

Qualified Floor Candidate — This candidate meets the qualifications described in the District 

Administrative Bylaws.  

Eligible Floor Candidate — This candidate was evaluated by the DLC for the specific role they are 

running and meets the qualifications described in the District Administrative Bylaws.  

  

All floor candidates must be qualified or eligible and have a signed and submitted District Leader Agreement 

and Release statement.  

  

The DLC was comprised of the following:   

  

Division A - Gwen Miller  

Division B - Barry Piatt  

Division C - Socrates Alexander  

Division D - David Davis  

Division E - Toni Ward  

Division F - Jason Wyatt  

Division G - Douglas Kelly  

  

Regards,  

  

Danielle Derrick, DTM  

Past District Director  

DLC Chair  

District Leadership Committee Email: dlc@district36.org  

  

    



Finance Reports: Audit Committee  

  

    



  



  

    



  

    



  

    



  

    



  



  



  



  



  

District Finance Report  

  

    



  

    



  
  



  

    



  

    

  



 

2024-2025 District Officers’ Reports  

  

Division A Director Report  

  Division: A Division Director: Sandhya Murthy  

  

Area Number/  
AD Name  

#  
Clubs 

in Area  

# of  
Officers  
Trained  
Winter  

# Clubs at 

Charter  
Strength?  

# Clubs 

with Officer 

List  
Submitted  

# Clubs 

with Apr  
Dues  
Paid  

Area Council 

Meeting 

Date?  

Area Contest Date?  
(Provide registration 

links below)   

A11- Angelika Achoy  4  13  0  4  4    April 2. 2025  

A12- Augusta Inniss, Acting  
AD  

3  4  0  4  2    April 2. 2025  

A13-Bruce Andersen  3  6  1  3  3    April 2. 2025  

A14-Anjani Kantheti  3  3  1  2  3    April 2. 2025  

A15- Ramu Garapati, Acting  
AD  

4  14  1  3  3    April 2. 2025  

  

Area Number/  
AD Name  

Spring  
AD  

Visits  
Done?  
(Summ 

ary,  
e.g.,  
3/5)  

Spring  
AD Visit   
Reports  
Submitt 

ed  
Online?  

# New 

members  
Since July 1  

Club Meetings  

AD Visit Comments / Feedback?  

# 

V 

ir 

t 

u 

a 
l  
O 

n 

l 
y  

#I 

n- 
Pe 

rs 
on  
On 

ly  

#H 

yb 
rid  

A11- Angelika Achoy  3  0  8  3    1    

A12- Augusta Inniss, Acting  
AD  

0  0  4  2    1    

A13-Bruce Andersen  2  2  8  2    1    

A14-Anjani Kantheti  1  0  8  2    1    

A15- Ramu Garapati, Acting  
AD  

2  0  10  3    1    

  
When were Division Council Meetings held? N/A  
  
Division Contest Date & Registration Link:  April 23, 2025 7 PM  
  
Any new club leads since July 1 in Division (yes/no):  No  
  
Additional Educational / Marketing / PR Activities:  No  
  
Other Notes:  N/A  

  

  

    



Division B Director Report  

  Division:  B Division Director: Maria Pia Younger  

Submitted May 6, 2005  

Color Code:  

● With the possibility of becoming Distinguished  
● Needs attention  
● Needs extra attention  

  

Area Number/ 

AD Name  

#  
Clubs 

in Area  

# of  
Officers  
Trained  
Winter  

# Clubs at 
Charter  

Strength?  

# Clubs with 
Officer List  
Submitted  

# Clubs 

with Apr  
Dues  
Paid  

Area Council  
Meeting Date?  

Area Contest Date?  
(Provide registration 

links below)   

A21 - Mike O’Rourke, DTM  5  5  2  5  5  NA  Saturday, March 22, 

2025 | 10:30 - 1:00 pm  

A22 - Cristian Cohen, LD5  6  6  0  5 (One with 

NA)  
4  NA  Saturday, March 22, 

2025 | 10:30 - 1:00 pm  

A23 - Latoya Skeine, PM5  5  5  2  4 (One with 2 

points)  
5  NA  Saturday, March 22, 

2025 | 10:30 - 1:00 pm  

A24 - Antonette 

BrothersonBrusco, PM2  
5  5  0  4  3  NA  Saturday, March 22, 

2025 | 10:30 - 1:00 pm  

  

Area Number/ 

AD Name  

Spring  
AD  

Visits  

Done?  
(Summ 

ary,  
e.g.,  
3/5)  

Spring AD  
Visit   

Reports  
Submitted 

Online?  

# New 
members  
since July  

1  

Club Meetings   

AD Visit Comments / Feedback?  

# 

V 
i 
r 
t 
u 
a 
l  
O 
n 
l 
y  

# 
I 
n 
- 
P 
e 
r 
s 
o 
n  
O 
n 
l 
y  

# 
H 
y 
b 
r 
i 
d  

A21 - Mike O’Rourke, DTM  2/7  5  17  3  0  2  •  2 points - Dupont Circle Toastmasters - need educational points, 

6 members (2 new members);   
       •  3 points - GWU - need educational points, 2 members (5 new 

members);  

       •  1 point - Foggy Bottom Toastmasters - no education points, 

needs 3 members (6 new members)   
A22 - Cristian Cohen, LD5  1/22  6  11  2  0  4  •  0 points - National Press Toastmasters needs help - no 

educational points, no new members, needs 7 members (8 new 

members)  
       •  1 point - Clara Barton Advance and Conquer - Needs educational 

points, 5 members (6 new members); no clu  

       
•  

officer training on the second part of the year.  
4 points - Stately Speaking; only needs 3 new members t o  

        become Distinguished - needs help with educational points ; 

. t  

o  

excellent work with club officer training and administration 

 •  6 points - GSA - needs 8 members (3 new members) to ge 

 the Distinguished status 
  

•  5 points - Diplomatically Speaking - needs 5 members t 

 obtain the Distinguished status 
  



A23 - Latoya Skeine, PM5  2/25  5  33  0  0  5  •  2 points - International Chat Masters; strong club but is not 

invested with the DCP - needs help with education points, 2 

more members (3 new members); no club training points in the 

second half of the year - only one club officer trained this year.  

       •  2 points IFC - needs help with education points, 93% of 

members are new members - we need veteran members to aid 

new members.  
 •  8 points - PAHO needs 1 member (4 new members) to 

  
 become President’s Distinguished 

  

A24 - Antonette Brotherson-Brusco,  
PM2  

3/12  5  5  2  0  3  •  2 points - Interior Toastmasters - needs education points  
(one person achieved Level 4), 5 members (6 new 

members); next year, they need to ensure 4 of their club 

officers have trained.  Problems with Gov status.  
       •  

•  

0 points - OPM Our People Matter - needs help with education, 
5 members (7 new members), and administration.  
3 points - FDIC - needs 1 more level 2 education and 11 

members ( 3 new members) to get the Distingusihed status.  

       •  2 points - Federal Reserve - No education points, need 11 

members (4 new members)  

       •  1 point - Eisenhower - No education points, 9 members (7 new 

members); next year, club officers need to be trained.  
Officers are non-responsive 

  

  

When were Division Council Meetings held? No Division Council Meeting held  

Division Contest Date & Registration Link:    

Division B International Speech Contest  

Saturday, May 10, 3:45 p.m. - 5:15 p.m  

West End Neighborhood Library, DC  

  

Any new club leads since July 1 in Division (yes/no):  No (Press National was revived but needs guidance)  

Additional Educational / Marketing / PR Activities:  Internal meeting role training (Diplomatically Speaking), Pathways (OPM)  

Other Notes:    

As of today, our Division is 84 members short of reaching its base membership level from June 30; 48% of our clubs are 

affiliated with government or quasi-government entities (e.g., federal agencies, the Federal Reserve), many of which have 

been affected by budget cuts and staffing changes.  

A few examples of these are:  

● Stately Speaking (U.S. Department of State), - 9  
● GSA, -6  
● FDIC, -17  
● Federal Reserve, -22  

What We Need:  
 A focused, all-hands effort to:  

● Reinstate past members  
● Retain current members  
● Recruit new members and guests  
● In all possibility, waive fees  

About the Division:  

Division B consists of four areas, each with five to six clubs, totaling 21.  As of May 6, our division has 278 paid members.  Our 

clubs are in Dupont Circle, Foggy Bottom, and the West End in Northwest D.C.  Some clubs hold virtual meetings, allowing us 

to maintain an international presence and diverse membership.  

  
Area Directors:  

● Mike O’Rourke, Area 21  



● Cristian Cohen, Area 22  
● Latoya Skeine, Area 23  
● Antonette Brotherson, Area 24  

  
Division Directors:  

● Maria Pia Younger, Director  
● Jaci Pasley, Deputy Director  

  
Division Highlights:  

● In the second half of the Toastmasters year, all clubs in Division B, 100% of our clubs, were visited. Four clubs met 

expectations, 14 exceeded expectations, and three far exceeded expectations. Thank you to all our area directors for making 

this happen once again!  
● Of our 21 clubs, 67% have at least four officers who completed their TLI training, and 90% have at least one officer 

participating. Thank you to all our club officers for their commitment to their clubs and Toastmasters!  A special congratulations 

goes to:  
○ OPM Our People Matter Toastmasters  

 ○  IMF Toastmasters Club  
 ○  PAHO Toastmasters Club  

for having all of their officers complete TLI training!  

● Since July 2024, Division B has welcomed 66 new members.  Currently, 252 members have active memberships through 

September 30, 2025, and 26 members have active memberships until March 31, 2026.  
● Five of our clubs have already achieved Distinguished or higher status, three clubs are on track to become Distinguished 

(having achieved five or more DCP goals), and three additional clubs have earned three to four DCP goals so far.   
Congratulations to:  

○ Dupont Circle of Speakers Club (S) — Select Distinguished  
 ○  Global Business Leaders (S) — Select Distinguished  
 ○  Talking Heads of State Club (S) — Select Distinguished  
 ○  Word Bankers Club (P) — President's Distinguished  
 ○  IMF Toastmasters Club (D) — Distinguished  

● As of February, we are proud to recognize seven Triple Crown Awardees for their outstanding achievements.  

  

  Triple Crown Awards - District 36 - Division B   

Member  Count  Award  Club Name  Area  

Hareldau Argyle King, DTM  5  DL3, DL4, DL5, MS4, MS5  Global Business Leaders  21  

Mansur Hasib, VC3  5  SR2, VC1, VC2, VC3, VC4   Talking Heads of State Club  22  

Cristian Cohen, DL3  5  DL1 , DL2 , DL3, DL4, DL5  GSA Toastmasters Club, Stately Speaking  22  

Monique R. McElveen, DL3  3  DL1, DL2, DL3  Talking Heads of State Club  22  

James Scarborough, DTM  3  PI2 , PI3 , PI1 , PI4 , TC4  PAHO, The George Washington University  21 & 23  

Latoya Skein  3  DL3, DL4, DL5  Word Bankers Club  23  

Jennifer Pleitte  6  TC3 , TC4 , TC5 , SR1 , SR2 , SR3  Word Bankers Club  23  

  

  
● Division B successfully co-hosted its annual open house with Divisions A and C. Thank you to everyone who contributed to 

making this event a success; we look forward to seeing our guests join us soon!  
● Congratulations to our area directors for hosting their International Speech Contest for Areas 21, 22, 23, and 24!  And 

congratulations to the winners who will now participate in the International Division B Contest on Saturday, May 10, from 3:45 

p.m. to 5:15 p.m., at West End Library.  As always, we’ll have some goodies for you to take home and a few covered 



refreshments to enjoy during the meeting.  Please join us in celebrating this milestone with our speakers.  The winners of the 

International Speech Contests at the area level, who will now compete on this day, are the following!:  
o Nwokedi Idika, Dupont Circle of Speakers, Area 21  
o Mansur Hasib, Talking Heads of State, Area 22  
o Wenqian Xu, International Chat Masters, Area 23  
o Tyrone Nichols, Interior Toastmasters, Area 24  

  

Lastly, the District 36 Toastmasters Conference will take place on May 16–17 at the Hilton Rockville.  Join us as we cheer 

on our Division’s contestant at the District level, participate in workshops, vote for leadership, and hear from inspiring keynote 

speakers — rumor has it there might even be a karaoke booth!   

  

   

     



Division C Director Report   

 

  



 

Division D Director Report   

 Division D Director: Justine Desmarais, EC4/SR3 

(submitted May 1 2025)  

  

 

Area Number/  
AD Name  

# Clubs 

in Area  

# of  
Officers  
Trained  
Winter  

# Clubs at 

Charter  
Strength  

# Clubs with 

Officer List  
Submitted  

# Clubs 

with Apr  
Dues  
Paid  

Area Council  
Meeting Date  

Area Contest Dates  
  

41  Justine Desmarais  6  20  0  5  5  N/A  Nov 16 2024 and  
March 23 2025  

42  Omotola Fawunmi  5  17  0  3  5  “    “    “  “    “    “  

43  Justine Desmarais  6  20  1  5  4  “    “    “  “    “    “  

44  Justine Desmarais  4  12  0  3  4  “    “    “  “    “    “  

45  Carla Harper  5  16  1  4  4  “    “    “  “    “    “  

  

 

Area Number/  
AD Name  

Spring AD  
Visits  

Done or  
Scheduled   

Spring AD  
Visit   

Reports  
Submitted  

# New 

members  
Since July 1  AD Visit Comments / Feedback  

41  Justine Desmarais  5/6  1  29  Visits in progress  

42  Omotola Fawunmi  1/5  0  11  Visits in progress  

43  Justine Desmarais  5/6  5  15  Please see TI assessments  

44  Justine Desmarais  3/4  3  16  “    “    “  

45  Carla Harper  4/5  4  42  “    “    “  

  

Membership:  

● 26 total clubs (22 in good standing); Prince Georges County Healthy Voices chartered April 1 2025; Bowie State 

University reinstated Feb 28 2025.  
● 254 paid members at present (down from 270 last October).   
● Several historically strong clubs have been impacted by 2025 federal layoffs, budget cuts and restrictions on 

workplace affinity groups - e.g., one USDA club is dissolving after 30 years, others trying to regroup outside of the 

workplace.  
  

Achievements:  

● 69 performance goals met across all clubs since July 1st.  
● Prince George’s County Women’s Bureau has achieved Distinguished status; “almost distinguished” clubs include 

Woodridge DC, NTL Advanced, Greenbelt, Spring Speakers, and Speakers On Nebo Way.    
  

Events:  

● Division Council Meetings held virtually on July 22 2024, Sept 16 2024, Jan 13 2025, March 17 2025, May 19 2025 

(TBC - may convert to in person during D36 annual conference).  
● Division Contests: December 8 2024 and April 27 2025 - congratulations to winners David Alexander (Humorous 

Speech) and Fodje Bobga Desmond (International)!  
● Division D&G Open House held Feb 1 2025 with 30+ in person attendees.  
● 75% of fall club visits completed; and 85% of spring club visits will be completed by May deadline.  

  

Leadership:  

● Thanks to Area 42 Director Omotola Fawunmi and Area 45 Director Carla Harper for their service, and to Division D 

Mentor Viki Kinsman for her guidance this year!  
● Although all AD roles were initially filled, the Division D Director has been covering Areas 41, 43 and 44 since last fall.  
● Candidates for all 2025-2026 Division D leadership positions were recruited and nominated by the Division D Director 

except for Area 41 Director - please contact justine.desmarais@district36.org if interested.   



 Division E Director Report   

 

 

  



Division F Director Report  

Patrick Cuff  

  

1. Some of the things that went well from the last time we met is that I was able to successfully 

coordinate the Area 61 International Speech Contest which took place on Thursday, March 27, 2025 at 

7:00PM and the Division F International Speech Contest which took place on Tuesday,  

April 29, 2025 at 7:00PM. Both Contests were held at the Wheaton American Legion in Wheaton, MD. 

One of the things that went well was that I was able to successfully coordinate in getting enough 

Judges, Timers and Ballot Counters for the event. Meredith Wilson was a big help for me in that 

regard.   

  

2. One of the things that can be improved would be my communication with the Club Presidents on 

Division F. I seem to have a hard time contacting the Club Presidents in Division F. One thing that can 

be improved is maybe developing a Club President Contact List or Directory so it can be easier to 

access then trying to look it up in a massive spreadsheet.  

  

  

3. The gaps in achieving better communication would be on Information and knowledge sharing. I believe 

we need to have better information and knowledge sharing. Another gap would be for us to share our 

contact information. Also I think the Presidents should embrace the Club Contest more than they do.   

  

4. There are a vast amount of possibilities for growth in Division F. One way it is possible is if the Club 

Presidents embrace participation in the Area and Division Contests. This would create a culture of 

competition which would result in growth to Division F overall. Also if we provided more 

encouragement in terms of Career Development Opportunities that can help people get a promotion 

or a new job.   

   

5. The people that can help me achieve this goal would be the Club Presidents, Area Directors, and 

District Directors. This would get everyone in the game and everyone will be able to improve the 

District’s prospects.  

    

  



Division G Director Report   

Director, Jill Vanderweit, DTM  

As of May 4, 2025  

  

Division G currently has 3 clubs that have achieved Distinguished (or better) status.  There are several other 

clubs that are nearly within reach and either lack, so far, the membership or educational goals.  WSSC is Select 

Distinguished; and She Leads She Speaks and Agricultural Research Center are Distinguished.  

Club visit reports are nearly completed, with 86% of the reports already submitted.  It is anticipated that 100% 

of the visits will be submitted before the final deadline in May.  

Approximately $1300 worth of incentives have been awarded to Division G clubs and members for the work 

that they have already completed this Toastmasters Year.  

There are some areas for improvement, however.  We anticipate losing at least one club, FDA Muirkirkers, due 

to the Department of Government Efficiency’s efforts to cut back the size and cost of Federal agencies.  

Several other clubs are struggling.  Of the 22 clubs in Division G, there are 15 of them that have membership of 

8-12 members, and therefore, could use the support of a coach.  In addition, 7 clubs have not submitted any 

educational goals, which leads me to consider whether or not they have embraced Pathways and are 

benefitting from Toastmasters’ educational program.  

Area and Division Contests were held, and one member will be representing Division G at both the District 36 

Humorous Speech and the International Speech contests.  

Sixteen clubs (73%) met their Administrative Goals this year; and 12 clubs (55%) met their Training Goals in 

both Summer and Winter sessions.  

  

    

  



Public Relations Manager End-of-Year Report  

Prepared by: Hareldau (Ha-rel-da) Argyle King, DTM, District 36 Public Relations Manager  

Greetings  

Greetings Mr. District Director, District Leaders, and Fellow Toastmasters,  

This year, our PR Committee was a Diverse, Dynamic, and Dynamite team, proudly serving alongside our 

District Trio — District Director, Program Quality Director, and Club Growth Director.  

Public Relations Communication Committee Team  

• Sonya Ponds, DTM – Communication Chair  

• Tara Holeman, DL5 – Social Media  

• Desiree Payne, DTM – Newsletter  

• Venkatramanan Krishnasami, DTM – Webmaster  

• Tracy Jordan, DTM – Virtual Leadership  

• Jennifer Ferguson, DTM – Oral Narrative  

• Vinod Ramachandran, TL3 – Meetup Platform  

• Louise Maitland, DTM – Email Communications & Graphic Designer  

Personal Thank You: I want to personally thank each committee member for their time, talent, and 

contributions this year. Whether you served for one month, many months, or the full year, your impact was 

felt, and the District is deeply grateful.  

Purpose  

As Public Relations Manager, my mission this year was to create a cohesive communication strategy that 

connects the District Trio, clubs, members, local communities, and a broader global audience.  

Eight-Point Initiative  

The Eight-Point Initiative unified District 36’s communication efforts across these touchpoints:  

• Website Development (Led by Venkat Krishnasami, DTM): Improved site access, updated event info, 

and ensured resources were current and relevant.  

• Email Communications (Led by Louise Maitland, DTM): Delivered timely updates and announcements 

to keep members informed and engaged.  

• Virtual Leadership Series (Led by Tracy Jordan, DTM): Designed to train and inspire leaders virtually; 

materials were prepared but not presented.  

• Meetup Platform Management (Led by Vinod Ramachandran, TL3): Expanded the District’s online 

presence, reaching a wider community and attracting guests.  

• Oral Narrative Storytelling (Led by Jennifer Ferguson, DTM): Brought member stories to life, deepening 

connection and showcasing the human side of Toastmasters.  

• Monthly Newsletters (Led by Desiree Payne, DTM): Highlighted key updates, achievements, and 

upcoming events, reinforcing member involvement.  

• Graphics and Visual Communications (Led by Louise Maitland, DTM): Created eye-catching visuals that 

made announcements, posts, and events stand out.  



• Social Media Growth (Led by Tara Holeman, DL5): Expanded visibility and engagement across 

platforms like Facebook, LinkedIn, Twitter, and YouTube.  

• Communication Coordination (Led by Sonya Ponds, DTM): Ensured all communication strategies were 

aligned, timely, and cohesive across all platforms.  

Key Initiatives and Achievements  

First District Workshop:  

"Amidst Turbulent Times? Anchor Yourself with Toastmasters"  

• Held in March 2025  

• Focus: Helping members navigate career uncertainty, leverage communication and leadership skills, 

and stay empowered during economic challenges  

• Outcome: 80+ registrations, reinforced Toastmasters' relevance during career transitions and AI-

induced labor shifts, and increased member engagement.  

Workshop Value:  

This workshop delivered actionable insights on resilience, leadership, and communication from expert 

speakers, empowering members to grow professionally and personally during challenging times.  

Watch Recording → Watch Workshop Recording  

New Initiatives Launched This Spring  

We launched video communications to make our messages more engaging, personal, and accessible. Videos 

help members connect emotionally, absorb information faster, and share content easily across platforms, 

expanding our reach and impact.  

We also launched highlighting clubs to showcase club achievements and unique stories, strengthening district 

identity and encouraging cross-club learning. We will continue both initiatives until the end of the 

Toastmasters year.  

Social Media Growth (as of March 2025)  

• District 36 Facebook Group: 642 members  

• Public Facebook Page: 69 followers  

• LinkedIn: 109 followers  

• Twitter: 580 followers  

• YouTube: 33 subscribers  

• Meetup: 1,411 members  

Leadership Lessons Learned  

We began the year strong with a large team, but as members departed due to professional, personal, or 

unforeseen challenges, we learned that small, committed, and well-supported teams can often achieve more 

https://youtu.be/8LDDqH7_Oac?si=RyO0BL5wJo9tE2td
https://youtu.be/8LDDqH7_Oac?si=RyO0BL5wJo9tE2td


consistent results. Effective leadership requires personal connection, clarity of roles, and ongoing support to 

help teams thrive.  

Closing Reflection  

My invitation to all Toastmasters: Let’s continue growing together, serving in an environment where leaders 

serve and others lead. Let’s remind others of the incredible value Toastmasters offers—helping us grow as 

communicators, leaders, and agents of positive change. Together, let’s recruit, rebuild, and reimagine what’s 

possible through Toastmasters.  

With collaboration, care, and creativity, we will continue to elevate District 36 to new heights.  

In Service,  

Hareldau (Ha-rel-da) Argyle King, DTM District 36 

Public Relations Manager 

publicrelations@district36.org  

  

    

  



 

Club Growth Director’s Year-End Report  

2024–2025 Program Year Augusta Inniss, DTM – Club Growth Director, District 36  

This year has been a remarkable journey of growth, collaboration, and resilience across District 36. As your 

Club Growth Director, I am proud to reflect on our accomplishments and the dedication shown by our 

members, leaders, and support teams.  

Club Growth & Retention  

Despite the challenges faced by many clubs, we focused our efforts on sustainability and strategic growth. We 

launched targeted membership campaigns and club coaching initiatives, and we are proud to report:  

• Clubs Chartered: 3 new clubs successfully chartered  

• Clubs in Formation: 5 prospective clubs currently working toward charter  

• Club Coaches Appointed: 5  

• Distinguished Clubs: 7 distinguished clubs, 4 Select Distinguished and 1 President’s Distinguished Club.    

The trio also implemented a "Club Care Campaign" to assist low-member clubs with retention strategies, 

personalized coaching, and offered special workshops focused on membership-building and club vitality.  

Marketing & Outreach  

To reach new communities and expand Toastmasters’ presence, we strengthened our marketing and outreach 

approach:  

• Held 3 district-wide Open House Campaigns  

• Reached out to local organizations for cross-promotional visibility  

• Participated in a global outreach program (Feed My Starving Children) to support hungry children while 

introducing and promoting the presence of Toastmasters  

Recognition & Support  

We plan to honor our outstanding clubs and members through the "Club Retention, Membership Growth, 

District 36 Club Angel Award and Club Ambassador Award" incentive program, along with acknowledging clubs 

that achieved growth benchmarks in membership during the Hail and Farewell celebration. Our goal was to 

recognize and motivate our members to stay engaged and supported throughout the year.  

Special Thanks  

 I want to extend my heartfelt appreciation to our Club Extension, Club Retention, and Club Coach Chairs, as 

well as our dedicated Area and Division Directors who worked tirelessly to support clubs and drive growth. 

Your commitment to excellence has made this year a success.  

As we look forward to a new Toastmasters year, let’s continue building strong clubs, developing confident 

leaders, and empowering voices across every community we serve.  

  

With gratitude and forward vision,  

Augusta Inniss, DTM  

Club Growth Director, District 36 2024–2025  



    

Program Quality Director’s Report  

Submitted by Arvind Venugopal, Program Quality Director, District 36 Toastmasters  

It has been an honor and a profound learning experience to serve as the Program Quality Director for District 

36 during this Toastmasters year. Entrusted with the responsibility of leading the educational and training 

initiatives for our 2,000+ members, I have had the privilege of collaborating with passionate leaders, dedicated 

volunteers, and a resilient community committed to growth and excellence.  

This year, we navigated the unique challenges of organizing events in a blended environment—online, hybrid, 

and in-person—ensuring that our programs remained inclusive, accessible, and impactful. From Club Officer 

Training programs to impactful webinars and specialized leadership workshops, our focus has remained 

steadfast on equipping our members with skills that extend beyond the club and into their personal and 

professional lives.  

As we celebrate our achievements, we are also actively addressing ongoing challenges that impact member 

growth and club success. The District team is working collaboratively to find creative, sustainable solutions to 

increase Pathways adoption rates, accelerate progress toward educational goals and Distinguished Club 

Program (DCP) milestones, strengthen mentor-mentee matchups and partnerships, and bridge generational 

learning styles. We are also exploring new avenues for collaboration across Clubs, Areas, and Divisions to 

foster a deeper sense of connection and shared purpose. These efforts are rooted in our belief that 

innovation, empathy, and flexibility are key to serving a diverse and evolving member base.  

One of the hallmarks of this term has been the spirit of collaboration within the District Leadership team. I got 

a chance to work in tandem with our District Director and Club Growth Director, we developed and 

implemented a strategic success plan aimed at elevating member engagement, club quality, and leadership 

excellence. Our unified vision and complementary strengths enabled us to make informed, strategic decisions 

with the member experience at the heart of all we do.   

Today, we gather for one of the signature moments of our journey—the District 36 Annual Conference. This 

inspiring event brings together members and guests to learn, connect, and celebrate. It showcases the very 

best of who we are as a District—our commitment to growth, leadership, and community. The conference 

planning and execution committees have exemplified creativity, adaptability, and excellence, and I am deeply 

grateful for their tireless efforts in bringing this experience to life.  

Special Recognitions:  

I would like to take a moment to recognize and sincerely thank the outstanding committee chairs and advisors 

whose leadership and service were instrumental to our success this year:  

• Glenda Dickonson and Doug Kelly, TLI Co-Chairs – for curating impactful and inspiring Club Officer 

Training experiences. Thanks to everyone who served as outstanding Instructors through the summer 

and winter sessions.  

• Fazl Fakrudeen, Education Chair – for delivering consistent and high-value learning opportunities 

throughout the year.  

• Fritzie Leroy, Contest Chair – for leading the contest season with clarity, structure, and unwavering 

dedication. Thanks to her deputy contest chair for assisting the team as well.   



• Meredith Wilson, District Chief Judge – for upholding the integrity and fairness of our contests with 

excellence.  

• Lianne Gayle, Social Committee Chair – for bringing energy, connection, and creativity to our events 

and member engagement.  

• Mike Onzay, Division E Director and Mentee of Arvind - who has gracefully embraced multiple hats 

through the year by assisting the District with logistical, technical, and tactical assistance whenever 

needed - going above and beyond Division Director duties.  

• Narayanan Doraswamy, Immediate Past Region 6 Advisor – for his wise counsel and strategic guidance 

that strengthened our direction.  

• Ena Okah, Past District 36 Director and Mentor to Arvind – for being a steady voice of encouragement, 

reflection, and leadership development.  

Each of these leaders has contributed to the heart and soul of District 36, and I am deeply grateful for their 

commitment and impact.  

Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to serve and grow with you all. I am confident that the seeds we’ve 

planted this year will continue to bear fruit in the years to come.  

With gratitude,  

Arvind Venugopal  

Program Quality Director  

District 36 Toastmasters  

  



District Director’s Report  

Submitted by Ramu Garapati, PM3 - District 36 Director  

  

Dear Esteemed Members and Leaders in District 36,  

As we approach the final couple of months of this Toastmasters year, I want to express my profound gratitude 

for the opportunity to lead and serve this wonderful community of Toastmasters across Montgomery County, 

Northwestern Prince George’s County in Maryland, and the Northeastern and Northwestern parts of 

Washington, D.C. It has been the privilege of a lifetime—one that has transformed me at the core and that I 

will cherish for years to come.  

District 36 has celebrated many successes this Toastmasters year, along with a few challenges. One of our 

most significant accomplishments has been bringing back the in-person contest experience. Contests are a 

core part of District 36’s identity. In recent years, our International Speech Contestants have competed on the 

world stage. This year, contests served two key purposes: first, they showcased the very best speakers at the 

Area, Division, and District levels; and second, they helped restore our sense of community as we moved 

beyond the “pandemic-induced inertia.”  

One of our key challenges has been managing the disruptions caused by changes in the functioning of the 

federal government and their ripple effects on clubs in the DMV region. A large portion of our members have 

been impacted by layoffs and reductions in force, while others are cautiously navigating this period of 

uncertainty. This impact has been particularly evident in the significant drop in membership renewals during 

the April dues cycle.  

Throughout the year, we focused heavily on identifying, recruiting, and training leaders to build the district’s 

leadership capacity. The District Leadership Team—including myself, Distinguished  

Toastmasters Arvind Venugopal (Program Quality Director), Augusta Inniss (Club Growth Director), the seven 

Division Directors, 23 active Area Directors, District Finance Manager and Public Relations Manager—actively 

participated in Steering and Executive Committee meetings. These efforts promoted leadership excellence and 

growth, strengthened internal communication, and increased the resilience of our clubs.  

Continuing the outreach efforts from previous years to both members and guests, the district introduced a 

new monthly event series titled “Virtual Dinner with a Leader.” This event, led by the Trio, serves as an open 

forum where members can ask questions and discuss topics that impact their Toastmasters experience.  

There was a noticeable increase in attendance at the in-person TLIs this year, and we successfully trained more 

club officers compared to last year. The Program Quality Director’s team also organized effective trainings, 

educational sessions, and panel discussions, all of which were immensely beneficial to the district—thanks to 

the leadership and dedication of our Program Quality Director and his team.  

In addition, the district successfully conducted three in-person open houses for the seven Divisions in February 

and March, under the leadership of the Club Growth Director and her team. These events had strong 

representation from clubs, members, and guests. The Club Growth Team also successfully chartered three 

new clubs and is actively working to charter a few more before the end of June.  

I am especially indebted to District Leadership Committee Chair, Past District Director, and Distinguished 

Toastmaster Danielle Derrick for encouraging members to experience the benefits of leadership and for 

guiding them through the nomination process. I also extend my sincere thanks to our District Club Alignment 



Committee Chair, Distinguished Toastmaster John Ojeifo, for his calm leadership and meticulous attention to 

detail while managing the club realignment process during such a challenging time.  

The District is also fortunate to be supported by three outstanding Distinguished Toastmasters: Finance  

Manager Robert Behr, Public Relations Manager Hareldau Argyle-King, and Audit Committee Chair Howard 

Glassman. I would be remiss if I did not acknowledge my mentors, who provided wisdom and exemplary 

guidance throughout the year—Distinguished Toastmaster and Past International Director Viki Kinsman, and 

Distinguished Toastmaster Cristin Birch.  

As our District continues to evolve, there is always room to deepen engagement—both within clubs and in 

support of the broader District mission. This year, we pursued both through Achievement-Driven Incentives, 

which measure the “Motivation-Skill” competencies of dedicated teams, members, and clubs, and a special set 

of Engagement Incentives, focused on “Bandwidth-Passion” competencies that define our leadership 

potential.  

Finally, I leave you with this question: Will you dare to lead and develop your "Presence-Influence" skills by 

serving at your highest level?  

If your answer is yes, it may be the best decision you ever make.  

  

To your Resilience, Growth and Continued Success  

Ramu Garapati, PM3  

District 36 Director  

  

  

  

  

  

    

  



 

Announcements  

2025 Toastmasters International Convention  

  

Get excited to be on the forefront of the next 100 years! Join fellow Toastmasters in Philadelphia, 

Pennsylvania to help shape and make your mark on a very special “envision” board of the future.  

Dates: August 20–23, 2025  

Current Registration is $775.00 (good through July 27)  

For more information, go to https://www.toastmasters.org/events/2025-international-convention   

  

Summer Toastmasters Leadership Institute (TLI)  

In May and June, clubs elect their new officers for the next Toastmasters year, which starts on July 1 of the 

current calendar year and ends on June 30 of the next calendar year.  Toastmasters Leadership Institute is 

where Toastmasters from across the district come together to network, share ideas, and be inspired. It’s 

where newly elected club officers receive training on how to best serve their clubs. And it’s where any 

Toastmaster can expand their skill sets as a communicator and leader with additional educational sessions. 

Even if you’re not serving as a club officer, “electives” are offered that cover a variety of topics.  

Our District Calendar is updated as information for upcoming TLIs and registration is submitted.  

Registration pages will include details for each session of the TLI, including a breakdown of sessions.  

The first sessions for the 2025-2026 Toastmasters Year will occur in June. To find upcoming sessions, go to 

https://district36.org/tli/.   

https://www.toastmasters.org/events/2025-international-convention
https://www.toastmasters.org/events/2025-international-convention
https://www.toastmasters.org/events/2025-international-convention
https://www.toastmasters.org/events/2025-international-convention
https://www.toastmasters.org/events/2025-international-convention
https://district36.org/tli/
https://district36.org/tli/

